

## STATE OF MINNESOTA

## EIGHTY-EIGHTH SESSION — 2014

---

 EIGHTY-FOURTH DAY

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA, MONDAY, APRIL 7, 2014

The House of Representatives convened at 12:00 noon and was called to order by Paul Thissen, Speaker of the House.

Prayer was offered by the Reverend Ralph Olsen, Union Gospel Mission, St. Paul, Minnesota.

The members of the House gave the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

The roll was called and the following members were present:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hansen	Liebling	Newton	Selcer
Albright	Dill	Hausman	Lien	Nornes	Simon
Allen	Dorholt	Hertaus	Lillie	Norton	Simonson
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Holberg	Loeffler	O'Driscoll	Slocum
Anderson, P.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Lohmer	O'Neill	Sundin
Anderson, S.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Loon	Paymar	Swedzinski
Anzelc	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Mahoney	Pelowski	Theis
Barrett	Fabian	Howe	Marquart	Peppin	Torkelson
Beard	Falk	Huntley	Masin	Persell	Uglen
Benson, J.	Faust	Isaacson	McDonald	Petersburg	Urdahl
Benson, M.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McNamar	Poppe	Wagenius
Bernardy	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamara	Pugh	Ward, J.A.
Bly	Franson	Johnson, S.	Melin	Quam	Ward, J.E.
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	Metsa	Radinovich	Wills
Carlson	Fritz	Kelly	Moran	Rosenthal	Winkler
Clark	Garofalo	Kieffer	Morgan	Runbeck	Woodard
Cornish	Green	Kiel	Mullery	Sanders	Yarusso
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Murphy, E.	Savick	Zellers
Davids	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, M.	Sawatzky	Zerwas
Davnie	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Myhra	Schoen	Spk. Thissen
Dean, M.	Halverson	Lenczewski	Nelson	Schomacker	
Dehn, R.	Hamilton	Lesch	Newberger	Scott	

A quorum was present.

Atkins was excused.

Mack was excused until 3:30 p.m. Hilstrom and Mariani were excused until 4:45 p.m.

The Chief Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding day. There being no objection, further reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal was approved as corrected by the Chief Clerk.

**PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS**

The following communication was received:

STATE OF MINNESOTA  
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR  
SAINT PAUL 55155

April 3, 2014

The Honorable Paul Thissen  
Speaker of the House of Representatives  
The State of Minnesota

Dear Speaker Thissen:

I respectfully request the opportunity to address a joint meeting of the Session of the 88th Minnesota State Legislature on Wednesday, April 23, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., for the purpose of presenting my State of the State message.

Thank you.

Sincerely,

MARK DAYTON  
Governor

Murphy, E., moved that the House accede to the request of the Governor for a Joint Convention to hear the State of the State message of the Governor at 7:00 p.m., Wednesday, April 23, 2014; that the Chief Clerk be instructed to invite the Senate to meet in Joint Convention at 6:45 p.m.; that the Governor be advised accordingly; and that the Speaker appoint a committee of five members of the House of Representatives to act with a similar committee to be appointed by the Senate to escort the Governor to the Joint Convention. The motion prevailed.

**ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER**

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to the committee to escort the Governor to the Joint Convention on Wednesday, April 23, 2014:

McNamar, Savick, Yarusso, Gruenhagen and Erickson, S.

**INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

The following House Files were introduced:

Woodard introduced:

H. F. No. 3343, A bill for an act relating to occupations; allowing an individual to pursue a lawful occupation based on meeting requirements needed to protect consumers; recognizing private certification organizations; specifying requirements for private certification organizations; allowing for use of factors in addition to personal qualifications; authorizing rulemaking; creating civil and criminal penalties; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 213.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Labor, Workplace and Regulated Industries.

Dean, M., introduced:

H. F. No. 3344, A bill for an act relating to human services; reimbursing the health care access fund for past transfers and appropriations related to expansions of medical assistance eligibility.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services Finance.

Murphy, E., moved that the House recess subject to the call of the Chair. The motion prevailed.

RECESS

RECONVENED

The House reconvened and was called to order by the Speaker.

Pelowski was excused between the hours of 2:55 p.m. and 3:00 p.m.

**CALENDAR FOR THE DAY**

S. F. No. 1737, A bill for an act relating to state government; requiring continued employer insurance contributions for certain former state employees; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 43A.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 129 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hansen	Liebling	Newton	Simon
Albright	Dill	Hausman	Lien	Nornes	Simonson
Allen	Dorholt	Hertaus	Lillie	Norton	Slocum
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Holberg	Loeffler	O'Driscoll	Sundin
Anderson, P.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Lohmer	O'Neill	Swedzinski
Anderson, S.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Loon	Paymar	Theis
Anzelc	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Mahoney	Peppin	Torkelson
Barrett	Fabian	Howe	Marquart	Persell	Uglen
Beard	Falk	Huntley	Masin	Petersburg	Urdahl
Benson, J.	Faust	Isaacson	McDonald	Poppe	Wagenius
Benson, M.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McNamar	Pugh	Ward, J.A.
Bernardy	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamara	Quam	Ward, J.E.
Bly	Franson	Johnson, S.	Melin	Radinovich	Wills
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	Metsa	Rosenthal	Winkler
Carlson	Fritz	Kelly	Moran	Runbeck	Woodard
Clark	Garofalo	Kieffer	Morgan	Sanders	Yarusso
Cornish	Green	Kiel	Mullery	Savick	Zellers
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Zerwas
Davids	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, M.	Schoen	Spk. Thissen
Davnie	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Myhra	Schomacker	
Dean, M.	Halverson	Lenczewski	Nelson	Scott	
Dehn, R.	Hamilton	Lesch	Newberger	Selcer	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2318, A bill for an act relating to school board elections; authorizing Special School District No. 6, South St. Paul, to dissolve election districts.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 127 yeas and 1 nay as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Carlson	Fabian	Hamilton	Kahn	Mahoney
Albright	Clark	Falk	Hansen	Kelly	Marquart
Allen	Cornish	Faust	Hausman	Kieffer	Masin
Anderson, M.	Daudt	Fischer	Hertaus	Kiel	McDonald
Anderson, P.	Davids	FitzSimmons	Holberg	Kresha	McNamar
Anderson, S.	Davnie	Franson	Hoppe	Laine	McNamara
Anzelc	Dean, M.	Freiberg	Hornstein	Leidiger	Melin
Barrett	Dehn, R.	Fritz	Hortman	Lenczewski	Metsa
Beard	Dettmer	Garofalo	Howe	Liebling	Moran
Benson, J.	Dorholt	Green	Huntley	Lien	Morgan
Benson, M.	Drazkowski	Gruenhagen	Isaacson	Lillie	Mullery
Bernardy	Erhardt	Gunther	Johnson, B.	Loeffler	Murphy, E.
Bly	Erickson, R.	Hackbarth	Johnson, C.	Lohmer	Murphy, M.
Brynaert	Erickson, S.	Halverson	Johnson, S.	Loon	Myhra

Nelson	Peppin	Runbeck	Simon	Urdahl	Zellers
Newton	Persell	Sanders	Simonson	Wagenius	Zerwas
Nornes	Petersburg	Savick	Slocum	Ward, J.A.	Spk. Thissen
Norton	Poppe	Sawatzky	Sundin	Ward, J.E.	
O'Driscoll	Pugh	Schoen	Swedzinski	Wills	
O'Neill	Quam	Schomacker	Theis	Winkler	
Paymar	Radinovich	Scott	Torkelson	Woodard	
Pelowski	Rosenthal	Selcer	Uglen	Yarusso	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Newberger

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2090, A bill for an act relating to civil actions; prohibiting certain indemnification agreements; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 604.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hansen	Liebling	Newton	Selcer
Albright	Dill	Hausman	Lien	Nornes	Simon
Allen	Dorholt	Hertaus	Lillie	Norton	Simonson
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Holberg	Loeffler	O'Driscoll	Slocum
Anderson, P.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Lohmer	O'Neill	Sundin
Anderson, S.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Loon	Paymar	Swedzinski
Anzelc	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Mahoney	Pelowski	Theis
Barrett	Fabian	Howe	Marquart	Peppin	Torkelson
Beard	Falk	Huntley	Masin	Persell	Uglen
Benson, J.	Faust	Isaacson	McDonald	Petersburg	Urdahl
Benson, M.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McNamar	Poppe	Wagenius
Bernardy	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamara	Pugh	Ward, J.A.
Bly	Franson	Johnson, S.	Melin	Quam	Ward, J.E.
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	Metsa	Radinovich	Wills
Carlson	Fritz	Kelly	Moran	Rosenthal	Winkler
Clark	Garofalo	Kieffer	Morgan	Runbeck	Woodard
Cornish	Green	Kiel	Mullery	Sanders	Yarusso
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Murphy, E.	Savick	Zellers
Davids	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, M.	Sawatzky	Zerwas
Davnie	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Myhra	Schoen	Spk. Thissen
Dean, M.	Halverson	Lenczewski	Nelson	Schomacker	
Dehn, R.	Hamilton	Lesch	Newberger	Scott	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2659, A bill for an act relating to state government; exempting a person who performs threading from licensing; authorizing the good cause exemption for rulemaking; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 155A.23, by adding a subdivision; 155A.27, subdivision 9; 155A.29, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 129 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hausman	Lien	Nornes	Simon
Albright	Dill	Hertaus	Lillie	Norton	Simonson
Allen	Dorholt	Holberg	Loeffler	O'Driscoll	Slocum
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hoppe	Lohmer	O'Neill	Sundin
Anderson, P.	Erhardt	Hornstein	Loon	Paymar	Swedzinski
Anderson, S.	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Mahoney	Pelowski	Theis
Anzelc	Fabian	Howe	Marquart	Peppin	Torkelson
Barrett	Falk	Huntley	Masin	Persell	Uglen
Beard	Faust	Isaacson	McDonald	Petersburg	Urdahl
Benson, J.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McNamar	Poppe	Wagenius
Benson, M.	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamara	Pugh	Ward, J.A.
Bernardy	Franson	Johnson, S.	Melin	Quam	Ward, J.E.
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	Metsa	Radinovich	Wills
Brynaert	Fritz	Kelly	Moran	Rosenthal	Winkler
Carlson	Garofalo	Kieffer	Morgan	Runbeck	Woodard
Clark	Green	Kiel	Mullery	Sanders	Yarusso
Cornish	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Murphy, E.	Savick	Zellers
Daudt	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, M.	Sawatzky	Zerwas
Davids	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Myhra	Schoen	Spk. Thissen
Davnie	Halverson	Lenczewski	Nelson	Schomacker	
Dean, M.	Hamilton	Lesch	Newberger	Scott	
Dehn, R.	Hansen	Liebling	Newton	Selcer	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2937, A bill for an act relating to state government; making technical changes affecting the Minnesota Historical Society; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 3.732, subdivision 1; 43A.24, subdivision 2; 138.081, subdivision 2; 138.662, subdivision 21, by adding subdivisions; 138.94; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 138.662, subdivisions 4, 34.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Anderson, M.	Anzelc	Benson, J.	Bly	Clark
Albright	Anderson, P.	Barrett	Benson, M.	Brynaert	Cornish
Allen	Anderson, S.	Beard	Bernardy	Carlson	Daudt

Davids	Garofalo	Johnson, S.	McDonald	Pelowski	Slocum
Davnie	Green	Kahn	McNamar	Peppin	Sundin
Dean, M.	Gruenhagen	Kelly	McNamara	Persell	Swedzinski
Dehn, R.	Gunther	Kieffer	Melin	Petersburg	Theis
Dettmer	Hackbarth	Kiel	Metsa	Poppe	Torkelson
Dill	Halverson	Kresha	Moran	Pugh	Uglem
Dorholt	Hamilton	Laine	Morgan	Quam	Urdahl
Drazkowski	Hansen	Leidiger	Mullery	Radinovich	Wagenius
Erhardt	Hausman	Lenczewski	Murphy, E.	Rosenthal	Ward, J.A.
Erickson, R.	Hertaus	Lesch	Murphy, M.	Runbeck	Ward, J.E.
Erickson, S.	Holberg	Liebling	Myhra	Sanders	Wills
Fabian	Hoppe	Lien	Nelson	Savick	Winkler
Falk	Hornstein	Lillie	Newberger	Sawatzky	Woodard
Faust	Hortman	Loeffler	Newton	Schoen	Yarusso
Fischer	Howe	Lohmer	Nornes	Schomacker	Zellers
FitzSimmons	Huntley	Loon	Norton	Scott	Zerwas
Franson	Isaacson	Mahoney	O'Driscoll	Selcer	Spk. Thissen
Freiberg	Johnson, B.	Marquart	O'Neill	Simon	
Fritz	Johnson, C.	Masin	Paymar	Simonson	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2658, A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; adopting the recommendations of the Workers' Compensation Advisory Council; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 176.129, subdivisions 2a, 7; 176.135, subdivision 7; 176.136, subdivision 1a; 176.231, subdivision 2; 176.305, subdivision 1a; Minnesota Statutes 2013 Supplement, section 176.011, subdivision 15; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 175.006, subdivision 1; 175.08; 175.14; 175.26; 176.1311; 176.136, subdivision 3; 176.2615; 176.641.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Davnie	Green	Kahn	McNamar	Peppin
Albright	Dean, M.	Gruenhagen	Kelly	McNamara	Persell
Allen	Dehn, R.	Gunther	Kieffer	Melin	Petersburg
Anderson, M.	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Kiel	Metsa	Poppe
Anderson, P.	Dill	Halverson	Kresha	Moran	Pugh
Anderson, S.	Dorholt	Hamilton	Laine	Morgan	Quam
Anzelc	Drazkowski	Hansen	Leidiger	Mullery	Radinovich
Barrett	Erhardt	Hausman	Lenczewski	Murphy, E.	Rosenthal
Beard	Erickson, R.	Hertaus	Lesch	Murphy, M.	Runbeck
Benson, J.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Liebling	Myhra	Sanders
Benson, M.	Fabian	Hoppe	Lien	Nelson	Savick
Bernardy	Falk	Hornstein	Lillie	Newberger	Sawatzky
Bly	Faust	Hortman	Loeffler	Newton	Schoen
Brynaert	Fischer	Howe	Lohmer	Nornes	Schomacker
Carlson	FitzSimmons	Huntley	Loon	Norton	Scott
Clark	Franson	Isaacson	Mahoney	O'Driscoll	Selcer
Cornish	Freiberg	Johnson, B.	Marquart	O'Neill	Simon
Daudt	Fritz	Johnson, C.	Masin	Paymar	Simonson
Davids	Garofalo	Johnson, S.	McDonald	Pelowski	Slocum

Sundin	Torkelson	Wagenius	Wills	Yarusso	Spk. Thissen
Swedzinski	Uglen	Ward, J.A.	Winkler	Zellers	
Theis	Urdahl	Ward, J.E.	Woodard	Zerwas	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2948 was reported to the House.

Mahoney moved to amend H. F. No. 2948, the first engrossment, as follows:

Page 4, delete lines 16 to 17

Page 4, line 18, delete "16" and insert "15"

Page 4, line 20, delete "17" and insert "16"

Correct the title numbers accordingly

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

H. F. No. 2948, A bill for an act relating to economic development; repealing obsolete, redundant, and unnecessary laws administered by the Department of Employment and Economic Development; making conforming changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 15.991, subdivision 1; 116C.34, subdivision 3; 116D.04, subdivision 2a; 116L.02; 116L.05, subdivision 5; 116L.20, subdivision 2; 256J.49, subdivision 4; 256J.51, subdivision 2; 268.105, subdivision 7; 268.186; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 116C.22; 116C.23; 116C.24; 116C.25; 116C.26; 116C.261; 116C.27; 116C.28; 116C.29; 116C.30; 116C.31; 116C.32; 116C.33; 116J.037; 116J.422; 116J.658; 116J.68, subdivision 5; 116J.74, subdivision 7a; 116J.874, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5; 116J.885; 116J.987; 116J.988; 116J.989; 116J.990, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6; 116L.06; 116L.10; 116L.11; 116L.12, subdivisions 1, 3, 4, 5, 6; 116L.13; 116L.14; 116L.15; 116L.361, subdivision 2; 116L.363; 116L.871; 116L.872; 469.109; 469.124; Minnesota Statutes 2013 Supplement, sections 116J.6581; 116J.70, subdivision 2a.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended, and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Beard	Cornish	Dorholt	Fischer	Gunther
Albright	Benson, J.	Daudt	Drazkowski	FitzSimmons	Hackbarth
Allen	Benson, M.	Davids	Erhardt	Franson	Halverson
Anderson, M.	Bernardy	Davnie	Erickson, R.	Freiberg	Hamilton
Anderson, P.	Bly	Dean, M.	Erickson, S.	Fritz	Hansen
Anderson, S.	Brynaert	Dehn, R.	Fabian	Garofalo	Hausman
Anzelc	Carlson	Dettmer	Falk	Green	Hertaus
Barrett	Clark	Dill	Faust	Gruenhagen	Holberg

Hoppe	Laine	McNamar	Norton	Sanders	Uglen
Hornstein	Leidiger	McNamara	O'Driscoll	Savick	Urdahl
Hortman	Lenczewski	Melin	O'Neill	Sawatzky	Wagenius
Howe	Lesch	Metsa	Paymar	Schoen	Ward, J.A.
Huntley	Liebling	Moran	Pelowski	Schomacker	Ward, J.E.
Isaacson	Lien	Morgan	Peppin	Scott	Wills
Johnson, B.	Lillie	Mullery	Persell	Selcer	Winkler
Johnson, C.	Loeffler	Murphy, E.	Petersburg	Simon	Woodard
Johnson, S.	Lohmer	Murphy, M.	Poppe	Simonson	Yarusso
Kahn	Loon	Myhra	Pugh	Slocum	Zellers
Kelly	Mahoney	Nelson	Quam	Sundin	Zerwas
Kieffer	Marquart	Newberger	Radinovich	Swedzinski	Spk. Thissen
Kiel	Masin	Newton	Rosenthal	Theis	
Kresha	McDonald	Nornes	Runbeck	Torkelson	

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 3072 was reported to the House.

Lenczewski moved to amend H. F. No. 3072 as follows:

Page 6, delete section 5

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Urdahl moved to amend H. F. No. 3072, as amended, as follows:

Page 6, after line 6, insert:

"Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 171.12, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. **Certain convictions not recorded.** (a) Except as provided in paragraph (c), the department shall not keep on the record of a driver any conviction for a violation of a speed limit of 55 miles per hour unless the violation consisted of a speed greater than ten miles per hour in excess of the speed limit.

(b) Except as provided in paragraph (c), the department shall not keep on the record of a driver any conviction for a violation of a speed limit of 60 miles per hour unless the violation consisted of a speed greater than:

(1) ten miles per hour in excess of the speed limit, for any violation occurring on or after August 1, 2012, and before August 1, ~~2014~~ 2015; or

(2) five miles per hour in excess of the speed limit, for any violation occurring on or after August 1, ~~2014~~ 2015.

(c) This subdivision does not apply to (1) a violation that occurs in a commercial motor vehicle, or (2) a violation committed by a holder of a class A, B, or C commercial driver's license, without regard to whether the violation was committed in a commercial motor vehicle or another vehicle.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Correct the title numbers accordingly

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Urdahl amendment and the roll was called. There were 68 yeas and 62 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dill	Hertaus	Lohmer	Pelowski	Torkelson
Albright	Drazkowski	Holberg	Loon	Peppin	Uglen
Anderson, M.	Erickson, S.	Hoppe	Marquart	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, P.	Fabian	Howe	McDonald	Pugh	Ward, J.E.
Anderson, S.	Falk	Isaacson	McNamara	Quam	Wills
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Johnson, B.	Metsa	Rosenthal	Woodard
Beard	Franson	Kelly	Morgan	Runbeck	Zellers
Benson, M.	Green	Kieffer	Myhra	Sanders	Zerwas
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	Newberger	Schomacker	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	Nornes	Scott	
Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski	
Dettmer	Hamilton	Lenczewski	O'Neill	Theis	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Dorholt	Hornstein	Loeffler	Norton	Slocum
Anzelc	Erhardt	Hortman	Mahoney	Paymar	Sundin
Benson, J.	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Masin	Persell	Wagenius
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, C.	McNamar	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Bly	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Melin	Radinovich	Winkler
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	Moran	Savick	Yarusso
Carlson	Fritz	Laine	Mullery	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Clark	Garofalo	Lesch	Murphy, E.	Schoen	
Cornish	Halverson	Liebling	Murphy, M.	Selcer	
Davnie	Hansen	Lien	Nelson	Simon	
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Lillie	Newton	Simonson	

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Kiel moved to amend H. F. No. 3072, as amended, as follows:

Page 1, after line 12, insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.021, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Disability plates; application.** (a) When a motor vehicle registered under section 168.017, a motorcycle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19,~~ a one-ton pickup truck ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 21b,~~ or a self-propelled recreational vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27,~~ is owned or

primarily operated by a permanently physically disabled person or a custodial parent or guardian of a permanently physically disabled minor, the owner may apply for and secure from the commissioner (1) immediately, a temporary permit valid for 30 days if the applicant is eligible for the disability plates issued under this section and (2) two disability plates with attached emblems, one plate to be attached to the front, and one to the rear of the motor vehicle, truck, or recreational vehicle, or, in the case of a motorcycle, one disability plate the same size as a regular motorcycle plate.

(b) The commissioner shall not issue more than one plate to the owner of a motorcycle and not more than one set of plates to any owner of another vehicle described in paragraph (a) at the same time unless the state Council on Disability approves the issuance of a second plate or set of plates to an owner.

(c) When the owner first applies for the disability plate or plates, the owner must submit a medical statement in a format approved by the commissioner under section 169.345, or proof of physical disability provided for in that section.

(d) No medical statement or proof of disability is required when an owner applies for a plate or plates for one or more vehicles listed in paragraph (a) that are specially modified for and used exclusively by permanently physically disabled persons.

(e) The owner of a vehicle listed in paragraph (a) may apply for and secure (i) immediately, a permit valid for 30 days, if the applicant is eligible to receive the disability plate or plates issued under this section, and (ii) a disability plate or plates for the vehicle if:

(1) the owner employs a permanently physically disabled person who would qualify for the disability plate or plates under this section; and

(2) the owner furnishes the motor vehicle to the physically disabled person for the exclusive use of that person in the course of employment."

Page 5, after line 20, insert:

"Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.12, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Plates; design, visibility, periods of issuance.** (a) The commissioner, upon approval and payment, shall issue to the applicant the plates required by this chapter, bearing the state name and an assigned vehicle registration number. The number assigned by the commissioner may be a combination of a letter or sign with figures. The color of the plates and the color of the abbreviation of the state name and the number assigned must be in marked contrast. The plates must be lettered, spaced, or distinguished to suitably indicate the registration of the vehicle according to the rules of the commissioner.

(b) When a vehicle is registered on the basis of total gross weight, the plates issued must clearly indicate by letters or other suitable insignia the maximum gross weight for which the tax has been paid.

(c) Plates issued to a noncommercial vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 21a,~~ must bear the inscription "noncommercial" unless the vehicle is displaying a special plate authorized and issued under this chapter.

(d) A one-ton pickup truck, ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 21b,~~ that is used for commercial purposes and is subject to section 168.185, is eligible to display special plates as authorized and issued under this chapter.

(e) The plates must be so treated as to be at least 100 times brighter than the conventional painted number plates. When properly mounted on an unlighted vehicle, the plates, when viewed from a vehicle equipped with standard headlights, must be visible for a distance of not less than 1,500 feet and readable for a distance of not less than 110 feet.

(f) The commissioner shall issue plates for the following periods:

(1) New plates issued pursuant to section 168.012, subdivision 1, must be issued to a vehicle for as long as the vehicle is owned by the exempt agency and the plate shall not be transferable from one vehicle to another but the plate may be transferred with the vehicle from one tax-exempt agency to another.

(2) Plates issued for passenger automobiles must be issued for a seven-year period. All plates issued under this paragraph must be replaced if they are seven years old or older at the time of registration renewal or will become so during the registration period.

(3) Plates issued under sections 168.053 and 168.27, subdivisions 16 and 17, must be for a seven-year period.

(4) Plates issued under subdivisions 2c and 2d and section 168.123 must be issued for the life of the veteran under section 169.79.

(5) Plates for any vehicle not specified in clauses (1) to (3) must be issued for the life of the vehicle.

(g) In a year in which plates are not issued, the commissioner shall issue for each registration a sticker to designate the year of registration. This sticker must show the year or years for which the sticker is issued, and is valid only for that period. The plates and stickers issued for a vehicle may not be transferred to another vehicle during the period for which the sticker is issued, except when issued for a vehicle registered under section 168.187.

(h) Despite any other provision of this subdivision, plates issued to a vehicle used for behind-the-wheel instruction in a driver education course in a public school may be transferred to another vehicle used for the same purpose without payment of any additional fee. The public school shall notify the commissioner of each transfer of plates under this paragraph. The commissioner may prescribe a format for notification.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.12, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Amateur radio licensee; special plates, rules.** (a) The commissioner shall issue amateur radio plates to an applicant who:

(1) is an owner of a passenger automobile or recreational ~~motor~~ vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivisions 24 and 27;~~

(2) is a resident of this state;

(3) holds an official amateur radio station license or a citizens radio service class D license, in good standing, issued by the Federal Communications Commission;

(4) pays the registration tax required under section 168.013;

(5) pays a fee of \$10 for each set of special plates and any other fees required by this chapter; and

(6) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers;

(b) In lieu of the registration number required for identification under subdivision 1, the plates must indicate the official amateur call letters of the applicant, as assigned by the Federal Communications Commission, and the words "AMATEUR RADIO."

(c) This provision for the issue of special plates applies only if the applicant's motor vehicle is already registered in Minnesota so that the applicant has valid regular Minnesota plates issued for that motor vehicle under which to operate it during the time that it will take to have the necessary special plates made.

(d) If owning more than one motor vehicle of the type specified in this subdivision, the applicant may apply for special plates for each motor vehicle and, if each application complies with this subdivision, the commissioner shall furnish the applicant with the special plates, indicating the official amateur call letters and other distinguishing information as the commissioner considers necessary, for each of the motor vehicles.

(e) The commissioner may make reasonable rules governing the use of the special plates as will assure the full compliance by the owner of the special plates, with all existing laws governing the registration of motor vehicles and the transfer and use of the plates.

(f) Despite any contrary provision of subdivision 1, the special plates issued under this subdivision may be transferred by an owner to another motor vehicle listed in paragraph (a) and registered to the same owner, upon the payment of a fee of \$5. The commissioner must be notified before the transfer and may prescribe a format for the notification.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.12, subdivision 2b, is amended to read:

Subd. 2b. **Firefighters; special plates, rules.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special plates, or a single license plate in the case of a motorcycle plate, to any applicant who:

(1) is a member of a fire department receiving state aid under chapter 69, has a letter from the fire chief, and is an owner of a passenger automobile as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24, a one-ton pickup truck as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 21b, or a motorcycle as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19;

(2) pays a fee of \$10 and any other fees required by this chapter;

(3) pays the registration tax required by this chapter for the motor vehicle; and

(4) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) In lieu of the identification required under subdivision 1, the special plates must bear an emblem of a Maltese Cross together with any numbers or characters prescribed by the commissioner.

(c) Special plates issued under this subdivision may only be used during the period that the owner of the motor vehicle is a member of a fire department as specified in this subdivision. When the individual to whom the special plates were issued is no longer a member of a fire department or when the motor vehicle ownership is transferred, the owner shall remove the special plates from the motor vehicle. If the commissioner receives written notification that an individual is no longer qualified for these special plates, the commissioner shall invalidate the plates and notify the individual of this action. The individual may retain the plate only upon demonstrating compliance with the qualifications of this subdivision. Upon removal or invalidation of the special plates, or special motorcycle plate, either the owner or purchaser of the motor vehicle shall obtain regular plates or a regular motorcycle plate for the proper registration classification for the motor vehicle.

(d) A special motorcycle license plate issued under this subdivision must be the same size as a standard motorcycle license plate.

(e) Upon payment of a fee of \$5, plates issued under this subdivision for a passenger automobile or truck may be transferred to another passenger automobile or truck owned or jointly owned by the person to whom the plates were issued. On payment of a fee of \$5, a plate issued under this subdivision for a motorcycle may be transferred to another motorcycle owned or jointly owned by the person to whom the plate was issued.

(f) The commissioner may adopt rules under the Administrative Procedure Act, sections 14.001 to 14.69, to govern the issuance and use of the special plates authorized in this subdivision.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.12, subdivision 2c, is amended to read:

Subd. 2c. **National Guard; special plates, rules.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special plates to any applicant who:

(1) is a regularly enlisted, commissioned, or retired member of the Minnesota National Guard, other than an inactive member who is not a retired member, and is an owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24;~~

(2) pays a fee of \$10 and any other fees required by this chapter;

(3) pays the registration tax required by this chapter; and

(4) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) The adjutant general shall design the emblem for these special plates subject to the approval of the commissioner.

(c) Special plates issued under this subdivision may only be used during the period that the owner of the motor vehicle is an active or retired member of the Minnesota National Guard as specified in this subdivision. When the individual to whom the special plates were issued is no longer an active or retired member of the Minnesota National Guard, the special plates must be removed from the vehicle by the owner. If the commissioner receives written notification that an individual is no longer qualified for these special plates, the commissioner shall invalidate the plates and notify the individual of this action. The individual may retain the plate only upon demonstrating compliance with the qualifications of this subdivision. Upon removal or invalidation of the special plates, either the owner or purchaser of the motor vehicle shall obtain regular plates for the motor vehicle.

(d) While the person is an active or retired member of the Minnesota National Guard, plates issued pursuant to this subdivision may be transferred to another motor vehicle owned by that individual upon payment of a fee of \$5.

(e) For purposes of this subdivision, "retired member" means an individual placed on the roll of retired officers or roll of retired enlisted members in the Office of the Adjutant General under section 192.18 and who is not deceased.

(f) The commissioner may adopt rules under the Administrative Procedure Act to govern the issuance and use of the special plates authorized by this subdivision.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.12, subdivision 2d, is amended to read:

Subd. 2d. **Ready Reserve; special plates, rules.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special plates to an applicant who:

(1) is not eligible for special National Guard plates under subdivision 2c, is a member of the United States armed forces ready reserve as described in United States Code, title 10, section 10142 or 10143, or a retired reserve as described in United States Code, title 10, section 10154, and is an owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24;~~

(2) pays a fee of \$10 and any other fees required by this chapter;

(3) pays the registration tax required by this chapter; and

(4) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) The commissioner of veterans affairs shall design the emblem for these special plates subject to the approval of the commissioner.

(c) Special plates issued under this subdivision may only be used during the period that the owner of the motor vehicle is a member of the ready reserve. When the owner is no longer a member, the special plates must be removed from the motor vehicle by the owner. If the commissioner receives written notification that an individual is no longer qualified for these special plates, the commissioner shall invalidate the plates and notify the individual of this action. The individual may retain the plate only upon demonstrating compliance with the qualifications of this subdivision. On removal or invalidation of the special plates, either the owner or purchaser of the motor vehicle shall obtain regular plates for the motor vehicle. While the owner is a member of the ready reserve, plates issued under this subdivision may be transferred to another motor vehicle owned by that individual on paying a fee of \$5.

(d) The commissioner may adopt rules under the Administrative Procedure Act to govern the issuance and use of the special plates authorized by this subdivision.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.12, subdivision 2e, is amended to read:

Subd. 2e. **Volunteer ambulance attendants; special plates.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special license plates to an applicant who:

(1) is a volunteer ambulance attendant as defined in section 144E.001, subdivision 15, and owns a motor vehicle taxed as a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24;~~

(2) pays the registration tax required by this chapter for the motor vehicle;

(3) pays a fee of \$10 and any other fees required by this chapter; and

(4) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) An individual may use special plates issued under this subdivision only during the period that the individual is a volunteer ambulance attendant. When the individual to whom the special plates were issued ceases to be a volunteer ambulance attendant, the individual shall remove each set of special plates issued. If the commissioner receives written notification that an individual is no longer qualified for these special plates, the commissioner shall invalidate the plates and notify the individual of this action. The individual may retain the plate only upon demonstrating compliance with the qualifications of this subdivision. When ownership of the motor vehicle is transferred, the individual shall remove the special plates from that motor vehicle. On removal or invalidation of the special plates, the owner or purchaser of the motor vehicle shall obtain regular plates for the motor vehicle. Special plates issued under this subdivision may be transferred to another motor vehicle owned by the volunteer ambulance attendant on payment of a fee of \$5.

(c) The commissioner may adopt rules governing the design, issuance, and sale of the special plates authorized by this subdivision.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.123, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General requirements; fees.** (a) On payment of a fee of \$10 for each set of two plates, or for a single plate in the case of a motorcycle plate, payment of the registration tax required by law, and compliance with other applicable laws relating to vehicle registration and licensing, as applicable, the commissioner shall issue:

(1) special veteran's plates to an applicant who served in the active military service in a branch of the armed forces of the United States or of a nation or society allied with the United States in conducting a foreign war, was discharged under honorable conditions, and is a registered owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, recreational motor vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~, or one-ton pickup truck ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 21b~~, but which is not a commercial motor vehicle as defined in section 169.011, subdivision 16; or

(2) a veteran's special motorcycle plate as described in subdivision 2, paragraph (a), (f), (h), (i), or (j), or another special plate designed by the commissioner to an applicant who is a registered owner of a motorcycle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19~~, and meets the criteria listed in this paragraph and in subdivision 2, paragraph (a), (f), (h), (i), or (j). Plates issued under this clause must be the same size as regular motorcycle plates. Special motorcycle license plates issued under this clause are not subject to section 168.1293.

(b) The additional fee of \$10 is payable for each set of veteran's plates, is payable only when the plates are issued, and is not payable in a year in which stickers are issued instead of plates.

(c) The veteran must have a certified copy of the veteran's discharge papers, indicating character of discharge, at the time of application. If an applicant served in the active military service in a branch of the armed forces of a nation or society allied with the United States in conducting a foreign war and is unable to obtain a record of that service and discharge status, the commissioner of veterans affairs may certify the applicant as qualified for the veterans' plates provided under this section.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.1235, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General requirements; fees.** (a) The commissioner shall issue a special plate emblem for each plate to an applicant who:

(1) is a member of a congressionally chartered veterans service organization and is a registered owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, pickup truck ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 26~~, van ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 40~~, or self-propelled recreational vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~;

(2) pays the registration tax required by law;

(3) pays a fee of \$10 for each set of two plates, and any other fees required by this chapter; and

(4) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) The additional fee of \$10 is payable at the time of initial application for the special plate emblem and when the plates must be replaced or renewed. An applicant must not be issued more than two sets of special plate emblems for motor vehicles listed in paragraph (a) and registered to the applicant.

(c) The applicant must present a valid card indicating membership in the American Legion or Veterans of Foreign Wars.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.124, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Issuance and design.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special plates bearing the inscription "MEDAL OF HONOR" to an applicant who:

(1) is a recipient of the Congressional Medal of Honor;

(2) is a registered owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, motorcycle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19~~, or recreational motor vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~; and

(3) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) The special plates must be of a design and size determined by the commissioner. Only one set of plates, or a single plate in the case of a motorcycle, bearing the inscription "MEDAL OF HONOR" may be issued for each qualified applicant.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.125, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Issuance and design.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special plates bearing the inscription "EX-POW" to any applicant who:

(1) is both a former prisoner of war and a registered owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, motorcycle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19~~, or recreational motor vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~; and

(2) complies with this chapter and rules governing the registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) The special plates must be of a design and size to be determined by the commissioner. Only one set of plates, or a single plate in the case of a motorcycle, bearing the "EX-POW" inscription may be issued for each qualified applicant.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.1253, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** (a) The terms used in this section have the meanings given them in this subdivision.

(b) "Active service" has the meaning given in section 190.05, subdivision 5.

(c) "Eligible person" means a surviving spouse, parent or legal guardian, child, or sibling of a person who has died while serving honorably in active service. For the purposes of this section, an eligibility relationship may be established by birth or adoption.

(d) "Motor vehicle" means a vehicle for personal use, not used for commercial purposes, and may include a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, motorcycle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19~~, recreational vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~, pickup truck ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 26~~, or van ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 40~~.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.129, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General requirements and procedures.** The commissioner shall issue special collegiate plates to an applicant who:

(1) is a registered owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~;

- (2) pays a fee as specified in section 168.12, subdivision 5, to cover the costs of handling and manufacturing the plates;
- (3) pays the registration tax required under section 168.013;
- (4) pays the fees required under this chapter;
- (5) contributes at least \$25 annually to the scholarship account established in subdivision 6; and
- (6) complies with this chapter and rules governing registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.1296, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General requirements and procedures.** (a) The commissioner shall issue critical habitat plates to an applicant who:

(1) is a registered owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, or recreational vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~;

(2) pays a fee of \$10 to cover the costs of handling and manufacturing the plates;

(3) pays the registration tax required under section 168.013;

(4) pays the fees required under this chapter;

(5) contributes a minimum of \$30 annually to the Minnesota critical habitat private sector matching account established in section 84.943; and

(6) complies with this chapter and rules governing registration of motor vehicles and licensing of drivers.

(b) The critical habitat plate application must indicate that the annual contribution specified under paragraph (a), clause (5), is a minimum contribution to receive the plate and that the applicant may make an additional contribution to the account.

(c) Owners of recreational vehicles under paragraph (a), clause (1), are eligible only for special critical habitat license plates for which the designs are selected under subdivision 2, on or after January 1, 2006.

(d) Special critical habitat license plates, the designs for which are selected under subdivision 2, on or after January 1, 2006, may be personalized according to section 168.12, subdivision 2a.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 2012, section 168.1298, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General requirements and procedures.** (a) The commissioner shall issue special "Support Our Troops" license plates to an applicant who:

(1) is an owner of a passenger automobile ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 24~~, one-ton pickup truck ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 21b~~, recreational vehicle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 27~~, or motorcycle ~~as defined in section 168.002, subdivision 19~~;

(2) pays a fee of \$10 to cover the costs of handling and manufacturing the plates;

(3) pays the registration tax required under section 168.013;

(4) pays the fees required under this chapter;

(5) contributes a minimum of \$30 annually to the Minnesota "Support Our Troops" account established in section 190.19; and

(6) complies with laws and rules governing registration and licensing of vehicles and drivers.

(b) The license application under this section must indicate that the annual contribution specified under paragraph (a), clause (5), is a minimum contribution to receive the plates and that the applicant may make an additional contribution to the account."

Reorder the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Nornes moved to amend H. F. No. 3072, as amended, as follows:

Page 7, after line 12, insert:

"Sec. 6. Laws 2009, chapter 158, section 10, as amended by Laws 2012, chapter 287, article 3, section 56, is amended to read:

Sec. 10. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Sections 2 and 3 are effective August 1, 2009, ~~and the amendments made in sections 2 and 3 to Minnesota Statutes, sections 169.011 and 169.045, expire July 31, 2014.~~

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment."

Page 7, line 13, delete "6" and insert "7"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 5, after "changes;" insert "eliminating a sunset;"

Correct the title numbers accordingly

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Nornes amendment and the roll was called. There were 67 yeas and 64 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Anderson, P.	Beard	Daudt	Dettmer	Erickson, S.
Albright	Anderson, S.	Benson, M.	Davids	Drazkowski	Fabian
Anderson, M.	Barrett	Cornish	Dean, M.	Erickson, R.	Falk

FitzSimmons	Holberg	Lohmer	O'Driscoll	Sanders	Wills
Franson	Hoppe	Loon	O'Neill	Savick	Woodard
Garofalo	Howe	Mack	Pelowski	Schomacker	Zellers
Green	Johnson, B.	McDonald	Peppin	Scott	Zerwas
Gruenhagen	Kelly	McNamar	Petersburg	Swedzinski	
Gunther	Kieffer	McNamara	Poppe	Theis	
Hackbarth	Kiel	Myhra	Pugh	Torkelson	
Hamilton	Kresha	Newberger	Quam	Uglem	
Hertaus	Leidiger	Nornes	Runbeck	Urdahl	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Dorholt	Huntley	Loeffler	Nelson	Simonson
Anzelc	Erhardt	Isaacson	Mahoney	Newton	Slocum
Benson, J.	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Sundin
Bernardy	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Wagenius
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	Melin	Persell	Ward, J.A.
Brynaert	Fritz	Laine	Metsa	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Carlson	Halverson	Lenczewski	Moran	Rosenthal	Winkler
Clark	Hansen	Lesch	Morgan	Sawatzky	Yarusso
Davnie	Hausman	Liebling	Mullery	Schoen	Spk. Thissen
Dehn, R.	Hornstein	Lien	Murphy, E.	Selcer	
Dill	Hortman	Lillie	Murphy, M.	Simon	

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

H. F. No. 3072, A bill for an act relating to transportation; modernizing provisions relating to traffic regulations; eliminating certain reporting requirements; distribution of motor vehicle sales tax revenues; eliminating antiquated, unnecessary, and obsolete provisions; making conforming changes; eliminating and extending sunsets; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 168.021, subdivision 1; 168.056; 168.10, subdivision 1b; 168.12, subdivisions 1, 2, 2b, 2c, 2d, 2e; 168.123, subdivision 1; 168.1235, subdivision 1; 168.124, subdivision 1; 168.125, subdivision 1; 168.1253, subdivision 1; 168.129, subdivision 1; 168.1296, subdivision 1; 168.1298, subdivision 1; 169.685, subdivision 7; 169.751; 171.12, subdivision 6; Laws 2009, chapter 158, section 10, as amended; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 168.0422; 168.055; 168A.20, subdivision 1a; 169.11; 169.36; 169.39; 169.725; 169.743; 169.754; 169.78; 169.7961; 169.983; 169A.60, subdivision 18; 171.28; 299D.02; 299D.04; 299D.05; 609B.202; Minnesota Rules, part 7409.4700, subpart 2.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended, and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 130 yeas and 1 nay as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Bly	Dorholt	Fritz	Hoppe	Kiel
Albright	Brynaert	Drazkowski	Garofalo	Hornstein	Kresha
Allen	Carlson	Erhardt	Green	Hortman	Laine
Anderson, M.	Clark	Erickson, R.	Gruenhagen	Howe	Leidiger
Anderson, P.	Cornish	Erickson, S.	Gunther	Huntley	Lenczewski
Anderson, S.	Daudt	Fabian	Hackbarth	Isaacson	Lesch
Anzelc	Dauids	Falk	Halverson	Johnson, B.	Lien
Barrett	Davnie	Faust	Hamilton	Johnson, C.	Lillie
Beard	Dean, M.	Fischer	Hansen	Johnson, S.	Loeffler
Benson, J.	Dehn, R.	FitzSimmons	Hausman	Kahn	Lohmer
Benson, M.	Dettmer	Franson	Hertaus	Kelly	Loon
Bernardy	Dill	Freiberg	Holberg	Kieffer	Mack

Mahoney	Mullery	O'Neill	Rosenthal	Simonson	Ward, J.E.
Marquart	Murphy, E.	Paymar	Runbeck	Slocum	Wills
Masin	Murphy, M.	Pelowski	Sanders	Sundin	Winkler
McDonald	Myhra	Peppin	Savick	Swedzinski	Woodard
McNamar	Nelson	Persell	Sawatzky	Theis	Yarusso
McNamara	Newberger	Petersburg	Schoen	Torkelson	Zellers
Melin	Newton	Poppe	Schomacker	Uglen	Zerwas
Metsa	Nornes	Pugh	Scott	Urdahl	Spk. Thissen
Moran	Norton	Quam	Selcer	Wagenius	
Morgan	O'Driscoll	Radinovich	Simon	Ward, J.A.	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Liebling

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 3014 was reported to the House.

Drazkowski moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as follows:

Page 9, delete lines 26 to 30

Reletter the paragraphs in sequence and correct the internal references

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Drazkowski amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 70 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglen
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Bly	Davnie	Erhardt	Fischer	Hansen
Anzelc	Brynaert	Dehn, R.	Erickson, R.	Freiberg	Hausman
Benson, J.	Carlson	Dill	Falk	Fritz	Hornstein
Bernardy	Clark	Dorholt	Faust	Halverson	Hortman

Huntley	Liebling	Melin	Newton	Savick	Wagenius
Isaacson	Lien	Metsa	Norton	Sawatzky	Ward, J.A.
Johnson, C.	Lillie	Moran	Paymar	Schoen	Ward, J.E.
Johnson, S.	Loeffler	Morgan	Pelowski	Selcer	Winkler
Kahn	Mahoney	Mullery	Persell	Simon	Yarusso
Laine	Marquart	Murphy, E.	Poppe	Simonson	Spk. Thissen
Lenczewski	Masin	Murphy, M.	Radinovich	Slocum	
Lesch	McNamar	Nelson	Rosenthal	Sundin	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Erickson, S., moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as follows:

Page 6, delete subdivision 6

ReNUMBER the subdivisions in sequence and correct internal references

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Erickson, S., amendment and the roll was called. There were 60 yeas and 70 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Davids	Gruenhagen	Kieffer	Nornes	Scott
Albright	Dean, M.	Gunther	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski
Anderson, M.	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Kresha	O'Neill	Theis
Anderson, P.	Drazkowski	Hamilton	Leidiger	Peppin	Torkelson
Anderson, S.	Erickson, S.	Hertaus	Lohmer	Petersburg	Uglem
Barrett	Fabian	Holberg	Loon	Pugh	Urdahl
Beard	FitzSimmons	Hoppe	Mack	Quam	Wills
Benson, M.	Franson	Howe	McDonald	Runbeck	Woodard
Cornish	Garofalo	Johnson, B.	McNamara	Sanders	Zellers
Daudt	Green	Kelly	Myhra	Schomacker	Zerwas

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Huntley	Mahoney	Newton	Simon
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Isaacson	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Benson, J.	Falk	Johnson, C.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, S.	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Bly	Fischer	Kahn	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Brynaert	Freiberg	Laine	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Carlson	Fritz	Lenczewski	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Clark	Halverson	Lesch	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Davnie	Hansen	Liebling	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Lien	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Dill	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, M.	Schoen	
Dorholt	Hortman	Loeffler	Nelson	Selcer	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Leidiger moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as follows:

Page 8, line 2, after the period, insert "This subdivision does not apply to work slowdowns."

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Leidiger moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 8, line 2, after the period, insert "This subdivision does not apply to insubordination."

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Drazkowski moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 8, line 2, after the period, insert "This subdivision does not apply to smoking breaks."

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Drazkowski moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 8, line 2, after the period, insert "This subdivision does not apply to bullying."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Drazkowski amendment and the roll was called. There were 105 yeas and 26 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Halverson	Loeffler	O'Driscoll	Simonson
Albright	Dettmer	Hertaus	Lohmer	O'Neill	Swedzinski
Anderson, M.	Dill	Holberg	Loon	Pelowski	Theis
Anderson, P.	Dorholt	Hoppe	Mack	Peppin	Torkelson
Anderson, S.	Drazkowski	Hornstein	Masin	Petersburg	Uglem
Anzelc	Erhardt	Hortman	McDonald	Poppe	Urdahl
Barrett	Erickson, R.	Howe	McNamar	Pugh	Wagenius
Beard	Erickson, S.	Johnson, B.	McNamara	Quam	Ward, J.A.
Benson, J.	Fabian	Johnson, C.	Melin	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Benson, M.	Faust	Kelly	Moran	Rosenthal	Wills
Bernardy	Fischer	Kieffer	Morgan	Runbeck	Woodard
Brynaert	FitzSimmons	Kiel	Mullery	Sanders	Yarusso
Carlson	Franson	Kresha	Murphy, E.	Savick	Zellers
Clark	Garofalo	Laine	Murphy, M.	Sawatzky	Zerwas
Cornish	Green	Leidiger	Myhra	Schomacker	Spk. Thissen
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Lenczewski	Newberger	Scott	
Davids	Gunther	Liebling	Newton	Selcer	
Davnie	Hackbarth	Lien	Nornes	Simon	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Fritz	Isaacson	Mahoney	Paymar	Winkler
Bly	Hamilton	Johnson, S.	Marquart	Persell	
Dehn, R.	Hansen	Kahn	Metsa	Schoen	
Falk	Hausman	Lesch	Nelson	Slocum	
Freiberg	Huntley	Lillie	Norton	Sundin	

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Quam moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 8, line 2, after the period, insert "This subdivision does not apply to intimidating and harassing child care workers or personal care attendants to join unions."

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Anderson, S., moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Pages 1 to 13, delete sections 1 to 11

Page 13, delete lines 28 to 33 and insert "commissioner of the Bureau of Mediation Services to establish a legal defense fund for individuals who believe they have wrongly been classified as public employees by law or by executive order. An aggrieved individual may apply to the commissioner for reimbursement of legal expenses incurred in seeking judicial relief from an inappropriate classification as a public employee."

Page 14, delete section 13

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Anderson, S., amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 70 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglen
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Huntley	Mahoney	Newton	Simon
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Isaacson	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Benson, J.	Falk	Johnson, C.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, S.	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Bly	Fischer	Kahn	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Brynaert	Freiberg	Laine	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Carlson	Fritz	Lenczewski	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Clark	Halverson	Lesch	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Davnie	Hansen	Liebling	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Lien	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Dill	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, M.	Schoen	
Dorholt	Hortman	Loeffler	Nelson	Selcer	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Benson, M., moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 5, line 31, after the period, insert "All members of the board and all alternate members must have completed necessary training to be a qualified neutral and must be on the roster of qualified neutrals maintained by the judicial branch."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Benson, M., amendment and the roll was called. There were 62 yeas and 71 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Torkelson
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Uglem
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Urdahl
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Wills
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Rosenthal	Woodard
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Runbeck	Zellers
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Sanders	Zerwas
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Schomacker	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Scott	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Theis	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Davnie	Fischer	Hortman	Lesch	Masin
Anzelc	Dehn, R.	Freiberg	Huntley	Liebling	McNamar
Benson, J.	Dill	Fritz	Isaacson	Lien	Melin
Bernardy	Dorholt	Halverson	Johnson, C.	Lillie	Metsa
Bly	Erhardt	Hansen	Johnson, S.	Loeffler	Moran
Brynaert	Erickson, R.	Hausman	Kahn	Mahoney	Morgan
Carlson	Falk	Hilstrom	Laine	Mariani	Mullery
Clark	Faust	Hornstein	Lenczewski	Marquart	Murphy, E.

Murphy, M.	Paymar	Radinovich	Selcer	Sundin	Winkler
Nelson	Pelowski	Savick	Simon	Wagenius	Yarusso
Newton	Persell	Sawatzky	Simonson	Ward, J.A.	Spk. Thissen
Norton	Poppe	Schoen	Slocum	Ward, J.E.	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Benson, M., moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 6, line 29, after the period, insert "All rules adopted by the board remain in effect only until the adjournment of the next regular session of the legislature after final adoption of the rules, unless the legislature enacts a law continuing the rules for a longer period."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Benson, M., amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 71 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglem
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Selcer
Anzelc	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simon
Benson, J.	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Bernardy	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Brynaert	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Carlson	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Clark	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Davnie	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Dehn, R.	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dill	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Dorholt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Schoen	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Scott moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 7, line 28, delete "30" and insert "60"

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

The Speaker called Hortman to the Chair.

Franson moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 9, line 12, delete "five days nor" and insert "30 days"

Page 9, line 13, delete "more than 20 days"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Franson amendment and the roll was called. There were 62 yeas and 71 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Torkelson
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Uglen
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Urdahl
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Wills
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Rosenthal	Woodard
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Runbeck	Zellers
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Sanders	Zerwas
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Schomacker	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Scott	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Theis	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Selcer
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Simon
Benson, J.	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simonson
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Slocum
Bly	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Sundin
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Wagenius
Carlson	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Ward, J.A.
Clark	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.E.
Davnie	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Winkler
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Savick	Yarusso
Dill	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Dorholt	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Schoen	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Albright moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 5, line 25, delete "three" and insert "five" and after the period, insert "Two members shall be impartial taxpayers appointed by the governor."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The Speaker resumed the Chair.

The question was taken on the Albright amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 71 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglem
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Selcer
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simon
Benson, J.	Falk	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Bernardy	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Brynaert	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Carlson	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Clark	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Davnie	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Dehn, R.	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dill	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Dorholt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Schoen	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

#### IN MEMORIAM

The members of the House of Representatives paused for a moment of silence in memory of former Representative Steve Smith, of Mound, Minnesota, who served from 1991 to 2012.

Franson moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 9, line 7, after the comma, insert "upon receiving approval from the commissioner of mediation services,"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Franson amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 72 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglem
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Dauids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Schoen
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Selcer
Benson, J.	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simon
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Bly	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Carlson	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Clark	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Davnie	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Dill	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dorholt	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Quam moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 10, delete lines 4 to 36 and insert:

"(i) If, upon a preponderance of the evidence taken, the hearing officer determines that any party named in the charge has engaged in or is engaging in an unfair labor practice, the hearing officer must report that finding to the commissioner of mediation services, who shall determine possible future action."

Page 11, delete lines 1 to 35

Page 12, delete lines 1 to 36

Page 13, delete lines 1 to 16

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Peppin moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 10, delete lines 4 to 36 and insert:

"(i) At the conclusion of the process in this subdivision, the board shall give a written opinion on the matter. Opinions issued by the board are not binding, but must be given deference by a court considering the matter. A party acting contrary to an opinion issued under this subdivision must pay the attorney fees of the prevailing party in any court action that upholds the result of the opinion issued by the board under this subdivision."

Delete pages 11 and 12

Page 13, delete lines 1 to 16

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Peppin amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 72 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglem
Albright	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Dehn, R.	Fritz	Johnson, C.	Loeffler	Morgan
Anzelc	Dill	Halverson	Johnson, S.	Mahoney	Mullery
Benson, J.	Dorholt	Hansen	Kahn	Mariani	Murphy, E.
Bernardy	Erhardt	Hausman	Laine	Marquart	Murphy, M.
Bly	Erickson, R.	Hilstrom	Lenczewski	Masin	Nelson
Brynaert	Falk	Hornstein	Lesch	McNamar	Newton
Carlson	Faust	Hortman	Liebling	Melin	Norton
Clark	Fischer	Huntley	Lien	Metsa	Paymar
Davnie	Freiberg	Isaacson	Lillie	Moran	Pelowski

Persell	Rosenthal	Schoen	Simonson	Wagenius	Winkler
Poppe	Savick	Selcer	Slocum	Ward, J.A.	Yarusso
Radinovich	Sawatzky	Simon	Sundin	Ward, J.E.	Spk. Thissen

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Quam moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 5, line 30, after the period, insert "A public employee or an employee of an exclusive representative of public employees may not serve on the board. A former public employee or a former employee or an exclusive representative of public employees may not serve on the board for one year following termination of that employment."

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Kieffer was excused between the hours of 5:55 p.m. and 6:35 p.m.

Peppin moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 6, line 29, after the period, insert "The board's rules must provide that the rules of evidence for its hearings substantially conform to rules of evidence adopted by the office of administrative hearings to govern contested case proceedings."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Peppin amendment and the roll was called. There were 59 yeas and 73 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Davids	Gunther	Kresha	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski
Albright	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Leidiger	O'Neill	Theis
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hamilton	Lohmer	Peppin	Torkelson
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Hertaus	Loon	Petersburg	Uglen
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Holberg	Mack	Pugh	Urdahl
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Hoppe	McDonald	Quam	Wills
Beard	Franson	Howe	McNamara	Runbeck	Woodard
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Sanders	Zellers
Cornish	Green	Kelly	Newberger	Schomacker	Zerwas
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	Nornes	Scott	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Bly	Davnie	Dorholt	Faust	Halverson
Anzelc	Brynaert	Dean, M.	Erhardt	Fischer	Hansen
Benson, J.	Carlson	Dehn, R.	Erickson, R.	Freiberg	Hausman
Bernardy	Clark	Dill	Falk	Fritz	Hilstrom

Hornstein	Lesch	McNamar	Newton	Sawatzky	Ward, J.E.
Hortman	Liebling	Melin	Norton	Schoen	Winkler
Huntley	Lien	Metsa	Paymar	Selcer	Yarusso
Isaacson	Lillie	Moran	Pelowski	Simon	Spk. Thissen
Johnson, C.	Loeffler	Morgan	Persell	Simonson	
Johnson, S.	Mahoney	Mullery	Poppe	Slocum	
Kahn	Mariani	Murphy, E.	Radinovich	Sundin	
Laine	Marquart	Murphy, M.	Rosenthal	Wagenius	
Lenczewski	Masin	Nelson	Savick	Ward, J.A.	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Holberg moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 5, line 30, after the period, insert "No person that provides gifts, bequests, or grants to the Bureau of Mediation Services, or employee or officer of an organization that provides gifts, bequests, or grants to the Bureau of Mediation Services, may serve as a member of the board."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Holberg amendment and the roll was called. There were 122 yeas and 10 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hausman	Loeffler	Norton	Simon
Albright	Dill	Hertaus	Lohmer	O'Driscoll	Simonson
Allen	Dorholt	Hilstrom	Loon	O'Neill	Slocum
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Holberg	Mack	Paymar	Swedzinski
Anderson, P.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Mahoney	Pelowski	Theis
Anderson, S.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Mariani	Peppin	Torkelson
Anzelc	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Marquart	Persell	Uglen
Barrett	Fabian	Howe	Masin	Petersburg	Urdahl
Bear	Faust	Huntley	McDonald	Poppe	Wagenius
Benson, J.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McNamar	Pugh	Ward, J.A.
Benson, M.	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamara	Quam	Ward, J.E.
Bernardy	Franson	Johnson, S.	Melin	Radinovich	Wills
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	Moran	Rosenthal	Woodard
Carlson	Fritz	Kelly	Morgan	Runbeck	Yarusso
Clark	Garofalo	Kiel	Mullery	Sanders	Zellers
Cornish	Green	Kresha	Murphy, E.	Savick	Zerwas
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Leidiger	Murphy, M.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Davids	Gunther	Lenczewski	Myhra	Schoen	
Davnie	Hackbarth	Liebling	Newberger	Schomacker	
Dean, M.	Halverson	Lien	Newton	Scott	
Dehn, R.	Hamilton	Lillie	Nornes	Selcer	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Brynaert	Hansen	Laine	Metsa	Sundin
Falk	Isaacson	Lesch	Nelson	Winkler

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

McDonald moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 10, line 33, delete "the board or"

Page 10, line 35, delete everything after the period and insert "The party petitioning the district court for enforcement must pay its own costs and attorney fees."

Page 10, delete line 36

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the McDonald amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 69 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dean, M.	Gunther	Leidiger	Peppin	Uglen
Albright	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Lohmer	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hamilton	Loon	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Hertaus	Mack	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Holberg	McDonald	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	Faust	Hoppe	McNamara	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	FitzSimmons	Howe	Myhra	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Franson	Johnson, B.	Newberger	Scott	
Cornish	Garofalo	Kelly	Nornes	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Green	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Davids	Gruenhagen	Kresha	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Isaacson	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Johnson, C.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Benson, J.	Falk	Johnson, S.	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Bernardy	Fischer	Kahn	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Bly	Freiberg	Laine	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Brynaert	Fritz	Lenczewski	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Carlson	Halverson	Lesch	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Clark	Hansen	Liebling	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Davnie	Hausman	Lien	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Dehn, R.	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, M.	Schoen	
Dill	Hortman	Loeffler	Nelson	Selcer	
Dorholt	Huntley	Mahoney	Newton	Simon	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Peppin moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 12, line 8, delete "or the board"

Page 13, line 16, delete "or the board"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Peppin amendment and the roll was called. There were 60 yeas and 72 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Davids	Gruenhagen	Kiel	Nornes	Scott
Albright	Dean, M.	Gunther	Kresha	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski
Anderson, M.	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Leidiger	O'Neill	Theis
Anderson, P.	Drazkowski	Hamilton	Lohmer	Peppin	Torkelson
Anderson, S.	Erickson, S.	Hertaus	Loon	Petersburg	Uglem
Barrett	Fabian	Holberg	Mack	Pugh	Urdahl
Beard	FitzSimmons	Hoppe	McDonald	Quam	Wills
Benson, M.	Franson	Howe	McNamara	Runbeck	Woodard
Cornish	Garofalo	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Sanders	Zellers
Daudt	Green	Kelly	Newberger	Schomacker	Zerwas

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Schoen
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Selcer
Benson, J.	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simon
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Bly	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Carlson	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Clark	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Davnie	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Dill	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dorholt	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Beard moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 5, line 29, delete everything after the period and insert "The governor must make all appointments to the board from a list of qualified individuals recommended by the Merit Selection Commission."

Page 5, line 30, delete everything before "The"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Beard amendment and the roll was called. There were 60 yeas and 72 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Anderson, S.	Cornish	Dettmer	FitzSimmons	Gruenhagen
Albright	Barrett	Daudt	Drazkowski	Franson	Gunther
Anderson, M.	Beard	Davids	Erickson, S.	Garofalo	Hackbarth
Anderson, P.	Benson, M.	Dean, M.	Fabian	Green	Hamilton

Hertaus	Kiel	McDonald	O'Neill	Sanders	Uglem
Holberg	Kresha	McNamara	Peppin	Schomacker	Urdahl
Hoppe	Leidiger	Myhra	Petersburg	Scott	Wills
Howe	Lohmer	Newberger	Pugh	Swedzinski	Woodard
Johnson, B.	Loon	Nornes	Quam	Theis	Zellers
Kelly	Mack	O'Driscoll	Runbeck	Torkelson	Zerwas

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Erhardt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Schoen
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Selcer
Benson, J.	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simon
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Simonson
Bly	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Slocum
Brynaert	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Sundin
Carlson	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Wagenius
Clark	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Davnie	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Rosenthal	Winkler
Dill	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Savick	Yarusso
Dorholt	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Leidiger moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **[179A.041] COMMISSIONER OF MEDIATION SERVICES AUTHORITY.**

The commissioner of mediation services may investigate charges of unfair labor practices under this chapter, and if the commissioner determines that a party has engaged in an unfair labor practice may issue a corrective order."

Amend the title accordingly

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Quam moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **STUDY.**

The commissioner of mediation services must report to the legislature by January 15, 2015, on potential advantages and disadvantages of creating a multi-member agency in the executive branch to consider and decide unfair labor practice charges under Minnesota Statutes, chapter 179A, the Public Employment Labor Relations Act. The commissioner must evaluate methods used in other states to consider unfair labor practice charges. In doing the study, the commissioner must consult with representatives of public employees, local government officials, local chambers of commerce, state agencies, and other interested persons."

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Carlson moved to amend H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 14, delete lines 2 and 3 and insert:

"Sections 1 to 3 and 6 to 11 are effective July 1, 2015. Sections 4, 5, and 12 are effective July 1, 2014."

Carlson moved to amend his amendment to H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 1, after line 1, insert:

"Page 9, line 8, delete everything after the period and insert "Unless after the investigation the board finds that the charge has no reasonable basis in law or fact."

Page 9, line 9, delete "involves a material issue of law or fact."

Page 10, line 8, delete "and to take action to effectuate the" and insert "and ordering any appropriate relief to effectuate the policies of this section, including but not limited to reinstatement, back pay, and any other remedies that make a charging party whole."

Page 10, delete line 9

Page 10, line 10, delete everything before "If"

Page 11, delete lines 20 and 21"

The motion prevailed and the amendment to the amendment was adopted.

Quam moved to amend the Carlson amendment, as amended, to H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 1, after line 1, insert:

"Page 8, after line 2, insert:

"This subdivision does not apply to an unlawful picketing or an unlawful boycott."

Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references

Amend the title accordingly

The motion did not prevail and the amendment to the amendment, as amended, was not adopted.

Howe offered an amendment to the Carlson amendment, as amended, to H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended.

#### POINT OF ORDER

Carlson raised a point of order pursuant to rule 3.21 that the Howe amendment to the Carlson amendment, as amended, was not in order. The Speaker ruled the point of order well taken and the Howe amendment to the Carlson amendment, as amended, out of order.

The question recurred on the Carlson amendment, as amended, to H. F. No. 3014, the second engrossment, as amended. The motion prevailed and the amendment, as amended, was adopted.

H. F. No. 3014, A bill for an act relating to labor; creating the Public Employment Relations Board; authorizing rulemaking; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 179A.03, subdivisions 14, 15, by adding a subdivision; 179A.04, subdivision 3; 179A.051; 179A.06, by adding a subdivision; 179A.10, subdivision 1; 179A.13; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 179A.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended, and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 74 yeas and 59 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dorholt	Hortman	Mahoney	Newton	Simonson
Allen	Erhardt	Huntley	Mariani	Norton	Slocum
Anzelc	Erickson, R.	Isaacson	Marquart	Paymar	Sundin
Benson, J.	Falk	Johnson, C.	Masin	Pelowski	Wagenius
Bernardy	Faust	Johnson, S.	McNamar	Persell	Ward, J.A.
Bly	Fischer	Kahn	Melin	Poppe	Ward, J.E.
Brynaert	Freiberg	Laine	Metsa	Radinovich	Winkler
Carlson	Fritz	Lenczewski	Moran	Rosenthal	Yarusso
Clark	Halverson	Lesch	Morgan	Savick	Spk. Thissen
Cornish	Hansen	Liebling	Mullery	Sawatzky	
Davnie	Hausman	Lien	Murphy, E.	Schoen	
Dehn, R.	Hilstrom	Lillie	Murphy, M.	Selcer	
Dill	Hornstein	Loeffler	Nelson	Simon	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Albright	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Kresha	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hamilton	Leidiger	O'Neill	Theis
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Hertaus	Lohmer	Peppin	Torkelson
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Holberg	Loon	Petersburg	Uglem
Barrett	FitzSimmons	Hoppe	Mack	Pugh	Urdahl
Beard	Franson	Howe	McDonald	Quam	Wills
Benson, M.	Garofalo	Johnson, B.	McNamara	Runbeck	Woodard
Daudt	Green	Kelly	Myhra	Sanders	Zellers
Davids	Gruenhagen	Kieffer	Newberger	Schomacker	Zerwas
Dean, M.	Gunther	Kiel	Nornes	Scott	

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2180 was reported to the House.

Erickson, S., moved to amend H. F. No. 2180, the fifth engrossment, as follows:

Page 6, line 23, after "group" insert "in consultation with the other exclusive representatives"

Page 7, line 16, delete "may" and insert "must"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Erickson, S., amendment and the roll was called. There were 133 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dill	Hertaus	Lillie	Nornes	Simonson
Albright	Dorholt	Hilstrom	Loeffler	Norton	Slocum
Allen	Drazkowski	Holberg	Lohmer	O'Driscoll	Sundin
Anderson, M.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Loon	O'Neill	Swedzinski
Anderson, P.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Mack	Paymar	Theis
Anderson, S.	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Mahoney	Pelowski	Torkelson
Anzelc	Fabian	Howe	Mariani	Peppin	Uglen
Barrett	Falk	Huntley	Marquart	Persell	Urdahl
Beard	Faust	Isaacson	Masin	Petersburg	Wagenius
Benson, J.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McDonald	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Benson, M.	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamar	Pugh	Ward, J.E.
Bernardy	Franson	Johnson, S.	McNamara	Quam	Wills
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	Melin	Radinovich	Winkler
Brynaert	Fritz	Kelly	Metsa	Rosenthal	Woodard
Carlson	Garofalo	Kieffer	Moran	Runbeck	Yarusso
Clark	Green	Kiel	Morgan	Sanders	Zellers
Cornish	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Mullery	Savick	Zerwas
Daudt	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Davids	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Murphy, M.	Schoen	
Davnie	Halverson	Lenczewski	Myhra	Schomacker	
Dean, M.	Hamilton	Lesch	Nelson	Scott	
Dehn, R.	Hansen	Liebling	Newberger	Selcer	
Dettmer	Hausman	Lien	Newton	Simon	

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Anderson, S., moved to amend H. F. No. 2180, the fifth engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 7, line 10, delete "up to two of the" and insert "two or more"

Page 7, line 11, delete "agreed to by" and insert "in consultation with"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Anderson, S., amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 72 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Peppin	Uglem
Albright	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Petersburg	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Pugh	Wills
Anderson, P.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Quam	Woodard
Anderson, S.	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Scott	
Cornish	Gruenhagen	Kiel	Norton	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gunther	Kresha	O'Driscoll	Theis	
Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	O'Neill	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Dorholt	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Schoen
Anzelc	Erhardt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Selcer
Benson, J.	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Simon
Bernardy	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simonson
Bly	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Paymar	Slocum
Brynaert	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Pelowski	Sundin
Carlson	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Persell	Wagenius
Clark	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Davids	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Radinovich	Ward, J.E.
Davnie	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Rosenthal	Winkler
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Savick	Yarusso
Dill	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Kresha moved to amend H. F. No. 2180, the fifth engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 6, line 23, after "unless" insert "a longer term not to exceed five years provides a better rate or package of benefits or"

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Barrett moved to amend H. F. No. 2180, the fifth engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 2, line 14, after "regarding" insert "the portion of" and delete "proportionate number of" and insert "employee-paid contributions."

Page 2, delete line 15

Page 2, line 17, after "refunds" insert "attributable to the employee-paid contributions"

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Barrett amendment and the roll was called. There were 61 yeas and 72 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hamilton	Lohmer	Petersburg	Uglen
Albright	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Loon	Pugh	Urdahl
Anderson, M.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Mack	Quam	Wills
Anderson, P.	Fabian	Hoppe	McDonald	Rosenthal	Woodard
Anderson, S.	FitzSimmons	Howe	McNamara	Runbeck	Zellers
Barrett	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Sanders	Zerwas
Beard	Garofalo	Kelly	Newberger	Schomacker	
Benson, M.	Green	Kieffer	Nornes	Scott	
Cornish	Gruenhagen	Kiel	O'Driscoll	Swedzinski	
Daudt	Gunther	Kresha	O'Neill	Theis	
Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Peppin	Torkelson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Dorholt	Hornstein	Lillie	Murphy, E.	Schoen
Anzelc	Erhardt	Hortman	Loeffler	Murphy, M.	Selcer
Benson, J.	Erickson, R.	Huntley	Mahoney	Nelson	Simon
Bernardy	Falk	Isaacson	Mariani	Newton	Simonson
Bly	Faust	Johnson, C.	Marquart	Norton	Slocum
Brynaert	Fischer	Johnson, S.	Masin	Paymar	Sundin
Carlson	Freiberg	Kahn	McNamar	Pelowski	Wagenius
Clark	Fritz	Laine	Melin	Persell	Ward, J.A.
Davids	Halverson	Lenczewski	Metsa	Poppe	Ward, J.E.
Davnie	Hansen	Lesch	Moran	Radinovich	Winkler
Dehn, R.	Hausman	Liebling	Morgan	Savick	Yarusso
Dill	Hilstrom	Lien	Mullery	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Erickson, S., moved to amend H. F. No. 2180, the fifth engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 4, line 29, delete "shall" and insert "may"

Page 4, line 31, after "sources" insert "if practicable," and after "two" insert "to five"

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

H. F. No. 2180, A bill for an act relating to insurance; amending provisions relating to health coverage for school district employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 2012, sections 43A.316, subdivision 10, by adding a subdivision; 123B.09, subdivision 12; 123B.75, by adding a subdivision; 471.6161, subdivisions 1, 3, by adding a subdivision; 471.895, subdivision 1; Minnesota Statutes 2013 Supplement, section 124D.10, subdivisions 4a, 11, 21.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended, and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 76 yeas and 57 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dill	Hausman	Lien	Murphy, E.	Simon
Allen	Dorholt	Hilstrom	Lillie	Murphy, M.	Simonson
Anzelc	Erhardt	Hornstein	Loeffler	Nelson	Slocum
Benson, J.	Erickson, R.	Hortman	Mahoney	Newton	Sundin
Bernardy	Falk	Huntley	Mariani	Paymar	Urdahl
Bly	Faust	Isaacson	Marquart	Pelowski	Wagenius
Brynaert	Fischer	Johnson, C.	Masin	Persell	Ward, J.A.
Carlson	Freiberg	Johnson, S.	McNamar	Poppe	Ward, J.E.
Clark	Fritz	Kahn	Melin	Radinovich	Winkler
Cornish	Gunther	Laine	Metsa	Rosenthal	Yarusso
Davids	Halverson	Lenczewski	Moran	Savick	Spk. Thissen
Davnie	Hamilton	Lesch	Morgan	Sawatzky	
Dehn, R.	Hansen	Liebling	Mullery	Schoen	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Albright	Drazkowski	Holberg	Loon	Peppin	Theis
Anderson, M.	Erickson, S.	Hoppe	Mack	Petersburg	Torkelson
Anderson, P.	Fabian	Howe	McDonald	Pugh	Uglen
Anderson, S.	FitzSimmons	Johnson, B.	McNamara	Quam	Wills
Barrett	Franson	Kelly	Myhra	Runbeck	Woodard
Beard	Garofalo	Kieffer	Newberger	Sanders	Zellers
Benson, M.	Green	Kiel	Nornes	Schomacker	Zerwas
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Norton	Scott	
Dean, M.	Hackbarth	Leidiger	O'Driscoll	Selcer	
Dettmer	Hertaus	Lohmer	O'Neill	Swedzinski	

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to.

The Speaker called Hortman to the Chair.

S. F. No. 1509 was reported to the House.

Hansen offered an amendment to S. F. No. 1509, the first engrossment.

#### POINT OF ORDER

Poppe raised a point of order pursuant to rule 3.21 that the Hansen amendment was not in order. Speaker pro tempore Hortman ruled the point of order well taken and the Hansen amendment out of order.

Sanders appealed the decision of Speaker pro tempore Hortman.

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The vote was taken on the question "Shall the decision of Speaker pro tempore Hortman stand as the judgment of the House?" and the roll was called.

There were 125 yeas and 8 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dill	Hertaus	Liebling	Newberger	Scott
Albright	Dorholt	Hilstrom	Lien	Newton	Selcer
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Holberg	Lillie	Nornes	Simon
Anderson, P.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Loeffler	Norton	Simonson
Anderson, S.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Lohmer	O'Driscoll	Slocum
Anzelc	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Loon	O'Neill	Sundin
Barrett	Fabian	Howe	Mack	Paymar	Swedzinski
Beard	Faust	Huntley	Mariani	Pelowski	Theis
Benson, M.	Fischer	Isaacson	Marquart	Peppin	Torkelson
Bernardy	FitzSimmons	Johnson, B.	Masin	Persell	Uglen
Bly	Franson	Johnson, C.	McDonald	Petersburg	Urdahl
Brynaert	Freiberg	Johnson, S.	McNamar	Poppe	Wagenius
Carlson	Fritz	Kahn	McNamara	Pugh	Ward, J.A.
Clark	Garofalo	Kelly	Melin	Quam	Ward, J.E.
Cornish	Green	Kieffer	Moran	Radinovich	Wills
Daudt	Gruenhagen	Kiel	Morgan	Rosenthal	Woodard
Davids	Gunther	Kresha	Mullery	Runbeck	Yarusso
Davnie	Hackbarth	Laine	Murphy, E.	Sanders	Zellers
Dean, M.	Halverson	Leidiger	Murphy, M.	Sawatzky	Zerwas
Dehn, R.	Hamilton	Lenczewski	Myhra	Schoen	Spk. Thissen
Dettmer	Hausman	Lesch	Nelson	Schomacker	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Allen	Falk	Mahoney	Savick
Benson, J.	Hansen	Metsa	Winkler

So it was the judgment of the House that the decision of Speaker pro tempore Hortman should stand.

S. F. No. 1509, A bill for an act relating to state government; designating March 31 as Cesar Chavez Day; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 10.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 83 yeas and 45 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Brynaert	Dorholt	Freiberg	Hilstrom	Johnson, S.
Allen	Carlson	Erhardt	Fritz	Hoppe	Kahn
Anzelc	Clark	Erickson, R.	Gunther	Hornstein	Kelly
Barrett	Cornish	Falk	Halverson	Hortman	Laine
Benson, J.	Davnie	Faust	Hamilton	Huntley	Lenczewski
Bernardy	Dehn, R.	Fischer	Hansen	Isaacson	Lesch
Bly	Dill	FitzSimmons	Hausman	Johnson, C.	Liebling

Lien	McNamar	Murphy, E.	Persell	Selcer	Wagenius
Lillie	McNamara	Murphy, M.	Poppe	Simon	Ward, J.A.
Loeffler	Melin	Nelson	Radinovich	Simonson	Ward, J.E.
Mahoney	Metsa	Newton	Rosenthal	Slocum	Winkler
Mariani	Moran	Norton	Savick	Sundin	Yarusso
Marquart	Morgan	Paymar	Sawatzky	Torkelson	Spk. Thissen
Masin	Mullery	Pelowski	Schoen	Urdahl	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Albright	Dettmer	Hackbarth	Leidiger	O'Neill	Swedzinski
Anderson, M.	Drazkowski	Hertaus	Lohmer	Peppin	Theis
Anderson, P.	Erickson, S.	Holberg	Loon	Petersburg	Uglem
Anderson, S.	Fabian	Howe	McDonald	Quam	Wills
Benson, M.	Franson	Johnson, B.	Myhra	Runbeck	Woodard
Daudt	Garofalo	Kieffer	Newberger	Sanders	
Davids	Green	Kiel	Nornes	Schomacker	
Dean, M.	Gruenhagen	Kresha	O'Driscoll	Scott	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

H. F. No. 2276, A bill for an act relating to the safe at home program; regulating participant data and real property records; amending Minnesota Statutes 2013 Supplement, sections 5B.05; 13.045.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 133 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dill	Hertaus	Lillie	Nornes	Simonson
Albright	Dorholt	Hilstrom	Loeffler	Norton	Slocum
Allen	Drazkowski	Holberg	Lohmer	O'Driscoll	Sundin
Anderson, M.	Erhardt	Hoppe	Loon	O'Neill	Swedzinski
Anderson, P.	Erickson, R.	Hornstein	Mack	Paymar	Theis
Anderson, S.	Erickson, S.	Hortman	Mahoney	Pelowski	Torkelson
Anzelc	Fabian	Howe	Mariani	Peppin	Uglem
Barrett	Falk	Huntley	Marquart	Persell	Urdahl
Beard	Faust	Isaacson	Masin	Petersburg	Wagenius
Benson, J.	Fischer	Johnson, B.	McDonald	Poppe	Ward, J.A.
Benson, M.	FitzSimmons	Johnson, C.	McNamar	Pugh	Ward, J.E.
Bernardy	Franson	Johnson, S.	McNamara	Quam	Wills
Bly	Freiberg	Kahn	Melin	Radinovich	Winkler
Brynaert	Fritz	Kelly	Metsa	Rosenthal	Woodard
Carlson	Garofalo	Kieffer	Moran	Runbeck	Yarusso
Clark	Green	Kiel	Morgan	Sanders	Zellers
Cornish	Gruenhagen	Kresha	Mullery	Savick	Zerwas
Daudt	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, E.	Sawatzky	Spk. Thissen
Davids	Hackbarth	Leidiger	Murphy, M.	Schoen	
Davnie	Halverson	Lenczewski	Myhra	Schomacker	
Dean, M.	Hamilton	Lesch	Nelson	Scott	
Dehn, R.	Hansen	Liebling	Newberger	Selcer	
Dettmer	Hausman	Lien	Newton	Simon	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

**REPORT FROM THE COMMITTEE ON RULES  
AND LEGISLATIVE ADMINISTRATION**

Murphy, E., from the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration, pursuant to rules 1.21 and 3.33, designated the following bills to be placed on the Calendar for the Day for Wednesday, April 9, 2014 and established a prefiling requirement for amendments offered to the following bills:

H. F. Nos. 2536, 859, 2141, 2295, 2446, 2402, 2656, 3027, 2227, 2950, 2874 and 2313; and S. F. No. 1762.

**MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS**

Newton moved that the names of Sundin and Metsa be added as authors on H. F. No. 1916. The motion prevailed.

Winkler moved that the name of Fischer be added as an author on H. F. No. 2281. The motion prevailed.

Schoen moved that the name of Bernardy be added as an author on H. F. No. 2307. The motion prevailed.

Hansen moved that the name of Schoen be added as an author on H. F. No. 2318. The motion prevailed.

Nornes moved that the name of McNamar be added as an author on H. F. No. 2322. The motion prevailed.

Norton moved that the names of Paymar and Selcer be added as authors on H. F. No. 2672. The motion prevailed.

Pugh moved that the name of Bernardy be added as an author on H. F. No. 2703. The motion prevailed.

Carlson moved that the name of Johnson, C., be added as an author on H. F. No. 3014. The motion prevailed.

Schomacker moved that the name of Sanders be added as an author on H. F. No. 3098. The motion prevailed.

**ADJOURNMENT**

Murphy, E., moved that when the House adjourns today it adjourn until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, April 8, 2014. The motion prevailed.

Murphy, E., moved that the House adjourn. The motion prevailed, and Speaker pro tempore Hortman declared the House stands adjourned until 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, April 8, 2014.

ALBIN A. MATHIOWETZ, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives